# EMBURSE ENTERPRISE TRAINING GUIDE

User Guide to Entering & Approving Expenses

Accounts Payable Contact: acctspayable@jmu.edu

Chrome River Training Guide

acctspayable@jmu.edu 04/01/2025

## **Table of Contents**

Overview:	2
Accessing Chrome River:	2
Pre-Approval:	3
Per Diem Wizard:	9
Submitting a Pre-Approval:	11
Entering an Expense Report:	12
Allocation:	13
Charging Multiple Departments or Account Codes:	13
Uploading Receipt Images:	15
Non-Travel Individual Expense Report:	16
Entering an Expense Report for Travel:	19
Building the Report:	21
Airfare:	22
Ground Transportation:	24
Rental Car:	25
Entering Mileage:	27
Taxi:	
Parking, Car Rental Fuel, State Vehicle Fuel, Public Transit (Bus, Metro) and Tolls:	
Entering a Hotel Expense:	30
Hotel Personal Non-Reimbursable:	34
Entering Conference/Registration and Membership Fees:	36
International Travel:	37
Currency Converter:	37
Reimbursing an External Person:	39
Submitting an Expense Report and Attaching a Pre-Approval:	41
Business Meals:	42
Adding an External Guest:	46
Chrome River Reminders:	47
Chrome River Helpful Links:	47
Contact Information:	47

## **Overview**

Chrome River is an electronic travel management solution used for entering and approving travel and individual expense reimbursements.

## **Chrome River**

Login into Chrome River by going to the Quick Login Access page, clicking on Chrome River, and logging in with your JMU EID and Password. The system can be accessed anywhere you have internet access.



After you log in with your JMU credentials, you will be taken to the Emburse Expense Enterprise home page. Your name will appear in the upper right-hand corner, with a drop-down menu.



## **Pre-Approval**

## When is a Pre-Approval Needed?

Pre-approvals are necessary in Academic Affairs for any expense report that is anticipated to be \$500 or more. Remember, this is the total cost of the trip and not just what the traveler is being reimbursed. In addition, a preapproval **must** be done for all international travel, as well as bringing a foreign national visitor to campus.

## **Entering a Pre-Approval**

A pre-approval is simply *an estimation* of costs associated with an upcoming trip. To get started, click the **+Create** button on the corner of the Pre-Approval.



Once you click "create" you will enter a Report Name, start date, and end date (these should be future dates for when the travel is occurring). The business purpose should clearly explain the purpose of the travel. Select the Report type: Domestic or International. Report Purpose: Conference, Other, or Recruitment. Type of Traveler: Employee or Outside Party (such as student or candidate). Allocation: The org code these expenses will be charged to. After these fields are filled out, click "Save" in the upper right-hand corner.

Cancel

## Pre-Approvals For Andrea Burkholder

Report Name	Training Guide
Start Date	12/01/2022
End Date	12/08/2022
Number of Days	8
Pay Me In	USD - US Dollars
Business Purpose	
Report Type	Domestic -
Report Purpose	Conference - Training -
Type of Traveler	Employee -
Allocations	
100432 - ACCOUNTS PAYABLE	

Once the header is created, you can start adding expenses by selecting the various tiles. Click on the "plus" sign at the top on the dark blue band and the tiles will show up. From here you can decide what to add to the report; airfare,

ground transportation (which includes sub-categories), lodging, conference/registration, meals using the per diem wizard, or misc./other.



**Airfare:** Enter the estimated amount that the flight will cost. If airfare will be purchased with a departmental SPCC, check the "University Paid" box. If airfare will be processed as a personal reimbursement, leave the box unchecked.

			Cancel Save
	Air Travel		
~	Estimated Amount	500.00 🔛 USD	
	Description Optional	Estimation of airfare based on current flight costs	
	University Paid		

Ground Transportation allows for three options in a Pre-Approval, Train, Mileage, or Car rental.



**Train:** These tiles are identical to Airfare. Check the "University Paid" box if it will be paid with a departmental SPCC. Then click "Save".

		Cancel	Save
<b>O</b> Train			
Estimated Amount	150.00 🔛 USD		
Description Optional	Estimated amount based on current rates.		
University Paid	✓		

**Mileage:** To estimate the mileage on a pre-approval look at the current IRS/Fleet rates and multiply the appropriate amount by the amount of miles expected to travel. IRS rate may be used for anything under 280 miles driven per day of the trip. The Fleet rate must be used for anything driven more than 280 miles per day of the trip. <u>https://www.irs.gov/tax-professionals/standard-mileage-rates</u>

	Cancel Save	
<b>Mileage</b>		
Estimated Amount	200.00 🖬 USD	
Description Optional	Estimated amount based on round trip mileage and current IRS rate	

**Car Rental:** Rental cars should be based on the economy car rate. Rental cars should be secured through MotorPool when possible. Although you cannot put these expenses on an SPCC, you can secure a rental through our corporate contract with Enterprise as a direct bill to your department. To estimate the amount, look at the daily rate of an economy vehicle at the location of travel, and multiply the amount by the number of days it will be used.

	Delete Edit
Car Rental	
Estimated Amount	300.00 USD
Description	Economy car in Austin TX is about \$60.00 a day during the ti me of travel. The vehicle will cost about \$240 plus taxes and f

**Lodging:** To estimate the cost of lodging enter the number of days of travel, the number of rooms, and the current Per Deim Rate for the area. The Estimated Amount will auto-populate. <u>https://www.gsa.gov/travel/plan-book/per-diem-rates</u>

					Cancel	Save
E Lodging						
Number Of Days	8					
Number of Rooms	1					
Per Diem Rate	96.00					
Estimated Amount	768.00	USD				
Description	Per Diem rate in Harris	sonburg,	VA is \$96.00/nig	ht.		

**Conference/Registration Fees:** Any fees associated with the conference can go into this tile, including membership fees. If these fees are paid in advance with a departmental SPCC, click the "University Paid" box. If this will be processed as a personal reimbursement to the traveler, leave the box unchecked.

		Cancel	Save
Conference /	Registration Fees		
Estimated Amount	300.00 🖬 USD		
Description Optional	Conference fee.		
University Paid			///

**Miscellaneous** – **Other:** This tile is for anything that is anticipated to come up during the trip that the other tiles have not accounted for. This can include taxis, baggage fees, rental car fuel, and so on.

		Cancel	Save
Miscellaneou	us - Other		
Estimated Amount	175.00 USD		
Description	Taxi to and from airport, and rental car fuel.		

**Per Diem Wizard:** This tile will prompt you to enter the start date of travel, the end date of travel, and the location. Then, click "Add Entries". *Please note the per diem wizard works the same way in a preapproval and an expense report.* 

Per Diem Wizard	•
Start Date	12/01/2022
End Date	12/08/2022
Days	8
Description Optional	Meals per diem in Harrisonburg, VA
Location 🚯	Harrisonburg-Harrisonburg (city), Virginia (VA), United States
	Add Entries Cancel

At this point, all of the meals for the entire trip are put on the righthand side of the report. When you click on a date it will give you the option to make "deductions" for any meals the conference will provide. The first and last day of travel will always need to be marked as "Travel Days". This gives the traveler 75% of the per diem rate. After all deductions and travel days have been checked, click "Add to Report"

	DATE	LOCATION		AMOUNT	
×	Thu, 12/01/2022	Harrisonburg, Virginia (VA),United States		44.25 USD	~
	Deductibles          Breakfast         Lunch         Dinner         Travel Day         Additional Deduction				
×	Fri, 12/02/2022	Harrisonburg, Virginia (VA),United States		59.00 USD	>
×	Sat, 12/03/2022	Harrisonburg, Virginia (VA),United States		59.00 USD	>
×	Sun, 12/04/2022	Harrisonburg, Virginia (VA),United States		59.00 USD	>
×	Mon, 12/05/2022	Harrisonburg, Virginia (VA),United States		59.00 USD	>
×	Tue, 12/06/2022	Harrisonburg, Virginia (VA),United States		59.00 USD	>
×	Wed, 12/07/2022	Harrisonburg, Virginia (VA),United States		59.00 USD	>
	Thu.	Harrisonbura.		44.25	
			Clear All Add to	Report	

## Submitting A Pre-Approval:

After all of the anticipated expenses for the trip accounted for on the report, click the green "Submit" button at the bottom of the page. The Pre-Approval will funnel through the appropriate approvers.

Andrea Burkholder		$\Theta$
Training Guide		(j)
EXPENSE		ESTIMATED
🥸 Mileage		200.00 USD
🚔 Car Rental		350.00 USD
Kang Lodging		768.00 USD
Conference / Registration Fees		300.00 USD
Miscellaneous - Other		175.00 USD
Meals - Incidentals		44.25 USD
Meals - Incidentals		59.00 USD
Meals - Incidentals		44.25 USD
PA Report ID 010001312334	Total Estimated Amount 2,735.50 USD	Submit

## **Entering an Expense Report:**

Expense reports can be started at any time and saved as a draft; however, the report cannot be submitted until the travel is completed and all the expenses associated with the business trip are accounted for. When entering an expense, the date on the tile should always be the date of purchase as shown on the receipt.

### **Report Header**

Expense headers are an introduction to the report. The "Header" cannot be edited once saved.

			Cancel	Save
Expenses	For Andrea Burk	holder		
Report Name	Training			
Pay Me In	USD - US Dollars	•		
Report Type	Select	•		
Report Purpose	Select	•		
Type of Traveler	Select	•		
Non Employee	Select	•		
Travel Start	Ċ			
Travel End	Ċ			
Business Days		0		

### **Report Name:**

The name should include information about what the report is about, "CAPS Conference June 1-3"

#### Pay Me In:

The only option is USD. International receipts will also be reimbursed in USD.

#### **Report Type:**

The drop down includes Athletics, Domestic, International, Non-Travel Individual Reimbursement, and Student Teacher Evaluation. Most commonly, the report type will be Domestic or International.

#### **Report Purpose:**

The drop down includes Conference-Training, Non-Travel Individual Reimbursement, Other, Recruitment, Student Teacher Evaluation and Team Travel.

#### **Type of Traveler:**

This is either Employee, Outside Party, or Student

#### **Travel Start & End Dates:**

Enter the full date range of travel i.e.: June 2, 2023 – June 7, 2023

#### **Business Days:**

We count the first day as "Day 1" – if travel is from June 1-June  $2^{nd}$  it is two business days.

#### **Business purpose:**

Each report must include a detailed description or business purpose. Give as much information and detail as you can to create a clear picture for the audit.

#### **Description:**

Each line item gives the option of posting a description of that expense. For example, a taxi description should indicate why the taxi was used: "Taxi taken from the airport to the hotel."

### Allocation:

The allocation is the org code that will pay for the expense. Multiple org codes, including grants, can be used on a single line item. The Allocation can be split by percentages or dollar amounts. As many org codes that are needed can be added to line items by clicking "Add Allocation".

Allocation	
100432 - ACCOUNTS PAYABLE	
+ Add Allocation =+ Presets	CREATE PRESET
Comments (0)	

## Example of a split allocation (charging more than one department or org code)

location				
	Split Equally	CI	ear Splits	
100432 - ACCOUNTS PAYABLE	50	%	192.50	•
100727 - CASH AND INVESTME	NTS 50	%	192.50	•
100727 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS	100	%	385.00	
Add Allocation =+ Presets		1	CREATE PRES	ET

## Non-Reimbursable expenses should be allocated to 9900.

Allocation	
9900 - Non-Reimbursable	
Horizon → Presets     Add Allocation	CREATE PRESET

University Paid expenses (SPCC payments) should be allocated to 9800.

Spent	385.00 🔛 USD		
Description	Conference fee		
Receipt Attached			
University Paid			
Guests (1) (i)			
Internal   Add Guests			
Upload CSV			
Internal × Andrea Burkhol Administrative As	l <b>der</b> ssistant	100 %	385.00
Sames Mauson	Oniversity	100 %	385.00
Allocation			
9800 - University Paid Expense	ή .		

## **Uploading Receipt Images**

Scan all the receipts to yourself as a PDF, you can "drag & drop" the file into Chrome River on the header page or click "Add attachment" and upload from your desktop.

Once uploaded, each receipt must be moved to the expense line it is associated with. To do this, simply drag the receipt from the gallery and drop it on the appropriate line.



## **Non-Travel Individual Expense Report**

A non-travel reimbursement is used when the expense owner does not travel for business but rather is seeking reimbursement for a JMU business-related expense where the departmental SPCC is not used. Examples of this can be tuition reimbursement, lab supplies, fieldwork supplies, equipment rentals, reference materials, shipping, educational supplies, etc. *To create a Non-Travel Individual Reimbursement, the "Report Type" and "Report Purpose" must both say "Non-Travel Individual Reimbursement".* 

Cancel	
ouncor	

## Expenses For Andrea Burkholder

Report Name	Training Guide Non-Travel/Non-Travel
Pay Me In	USD - US Dollars
Report Type	Non-Travel Individual Reimbur 👻
Report Purpose	Non-Travel Individual Reimbur 👻
Type of Traveler	Employee
Non Employee Optional	Select

After the Non-Travel Header is created, click "save" and select the tile that best describes the reimbursement. An itemized receipt is required for all reimbursements, showing proof of payment.

		0	හි And James	Irea Burkholder 🗸 Madison University
Add Expenses	1	₩₽	<u>Man</u>	
Create New	REFUNDS	FOOD	FREIGHT	NT-CONFERENCE/ REGISTRATION FEES (122400)
eWallet All Trips • Offline	NT-IT CONFERENCE / REGIS (122800)	NT-EDUCATIONAL SUPPLIES (137400)	NT-MEMBERSHIP FEES (122100)	NT-RECREATIONAL SUPPLIES (137800)
Recycle Bin eReceipts • Receipt Gallery	NT-MISCELLANEOUS -	NT-POSTAGE (121400)	NT-PASSPORT / VISA FEE (124700)	NT-OFFICE SUPPLIES
	MT-FOREIGN EXCHANGE FEE	PRINTING (121500)	F TT SERVICES (121100)	NT-EQUIPS-RENTALS / PURCHASE (153400)/
	NT-FACILITIES RENTAL	NT-FIELD SUPPLIES	SVFFATESRATSARX)	NT-EMPLOYEE TUITION
	MI-REFERENCE MATERIAL(222466)	NT-MEDICAL (DENTAL SUPPLIES (134200)		



**Food:** The "Food" tile breaks down into three sub-categories: "Non-Travel food service supplies", "Non-Travel Food and Dietary Items" and "Non-Travel Catering". For all food service supplies, catering, and food and dietary reimbursements, an uploaded list of attendees as well as a detailed agenda of the event is required.

**Non-Travel Food Service Supplies:** This tile is used to reimburse items such as plates, napkins, cups, etc. Please specify a reason for not using the departmental small purchase credit to purchase the items.

**Non-Travel Food and Dietary Items:** This tile is used to reimburse food items purchased at the store for an event. Please note if items are being brought back to campus and they are over \$250 you must have an Aramark Approval form attached to your report. This includes ice. Please leave a comment explaining why the departmental small purchase credit card was not used to purchase the items.

**Non-Travel Catering:** If an event is held on campus and a meal is being provided from an outside source, you may use this tile to reimburse.

**Other types of Non-Travel Reimbursements**: Non-Travel (NT) Conference/Registration fees and Non-Travel (NT) Membership fees, may only be reimbursed under "non-travel" if the employee does not have any physical travel related to these expenses. If the person is traveling, then they must be reimbursed after their trip is complete on a regular expense report.

**Non-Travel Employee Tuition Reimbursement** can be submitted for reimbursement after the employee has completed the coursework and proof of a passing grade or certificate of completion must be uploaded with proof of payment.

## **Entering an Expense Report for Travel**

## **Create the Header**

**Report Name:** The name should include information about what the report is about, "CAPS Conference June 1-3" **Pay Me In:** The only option is USD. International receipts will also be reimbursed in USD.

#### **Report Type:**

The drop down includes Athletics, Domestic, International, Non-Travel Individual Reimbursement, and Student Teacher Evaluation. Most commonly, the report type will be Domestic or International.

#### **Report Purpose:**

The drop down includes Conference-Training, Non-Travel Individual Reimbursement, Other, Recruitment, Student Teacher Evaluation and Team Travel.

#### **Type of Traveler:**

This is either Employee, Outside Party, or Student

#### **Travel Start & End Dates:**

Enter the full date range of travel i.e.: June 2, 2023 – June 7, 2023

#### **Business Days:**

We count the first day as "Day 1" – if travel is from June 1-June  $2^{nd}$  it is two business days.

#### **Business purpose:**

Each report must include a detailed description or business purpose. Give as much information and detail as you can to create a clear picture for the audit.

#### **Description:**

Each line item gives the option of posting a description of that expense. For example, a taxi description should indicate why the taxi was used: "Taxi taken from the airport to the hotel."

		Cancel	Save	
Expenses For	Andrea Burkholder			-
Report Name	Chrome River Training			
Pay Me In	USD - US Dollars 🗸			
Report Type	Domestic 🗸			
Report Purpose	Conference - Training -			
Type of Traveler	Employee -			
Non Employee Optional	Select			
Travel Start	01/02/2023			
Travel End	01/04/2023			
Business Days	3			

## **Building the Report:**

At this point, you should have all the details of the trip and receipts to begin building your expense report. Click on the circled "plus" sign to get the tiles to pop up and select the expense you need to add.



**Airfare:** The State will reimburse economy seating; and will not pay for seat selection, change ticket fees, or internet/telephone charges. If any of these charges were to appear on the flight receipt, put in the full amount of the ticket in the "spent" and use allocation 9900 to remove the non-reimbursable charge.

To enter airfare, click on "Air Travel" and "Airfare". The date should be the date of purchase. Spent is the total spent. Business purpose should be as much information as you can give to explain where they went and why. Select the airline, class, and receipt attached". If it was pre-paid on an SPCC, click "University Paid" and use allocation 9800.



Airfare	
Date	09/14/2022
Spent	350.00 USD
Business Purpose	Flying to Seattle Washington to present at the NCA Conference
Description Optional	
Airline	United -
Class	Economy/Coach 👻

		100 %	0.00
Receipt Attached			
University Paid			
Allocation			
100432 - ACCOUNT	S PAYABLE		
+ Add Allocation	<b>Ξ</b> ∔ Presets	CREAT	E PRESET

**Baggage Fee:** To add Baggage Fees to the report, click on "Airfare" and "Baggage Fee". Enter the date of purchase and the total amount spent. The state will reimburse checked luggage. The state will not reimburse any baggage costs that were not due to the traveler (examples include traveling with family members who may have traveled but not for JMU)

Baggage	e Fee	
Date	04/04/2023	
Spent	30.00 🗰 USD	
Description Optional	Checked baggage fee.	
Receipt Attached 🗹		
Allocation		
100432 - ACCOUNTS PAYABLE		

## **Ground Transportation:**



CHROME RIVER TRAINING GUIDE

**Rental Car:** The State will only pay for economy vehicles. The state cannot pay add-ons such as advance toll options, advance fuel options, or insurance. If the traveler is abroad, they can get the additional insurance, as they are only covered under JMU's liability insurance for domestic travel. Outside parties can also select to be reimbursed for insurance as they are not covered under JMU's liability insurance.

Date	04/04/2023
Spent	234.00 USD
Description	Needed a rental car to drive to and from the hotel while visiting with JMU Donors.
Rental Agency	Budget -
Location Optional	San Diego, CA
Were there additional car add-ons added to the bill	
Receipt Attached	
Allocation	
100432 - ACCOUNTS PAYABL	E

**Train:** Trains follow the same rules as airfare. The state can pay for standard travel only. Whenever possible, Trains should be paid in advance using a JMU SPCC.

Train	
Date	05/10/2023
Spent	45.00 USD
Rail Class	Standard Travel
Description	Traveling from Virginia to New York for Conference
Guests (1) i	

**Mileage:** Mileage should have a consistent "base point"; the location where the traveler starts and ends. Usually, this is their JMU work address. However, if a person is traveling somewhere and their destination is *closer* to their home address, then we would enter their home address instead of JMU. Mileage rates: The IRS rate is the higher rate and can be used for distances that are 280 miles *or less* per day of travel. If the traveler exceeds 280 miles per day of travel, then you must use the fleet rate.

Enter the date of travel, select the rate, and click on "Calculate Mileage"

Mileage	
Date	05/11/2023
Spent	0.00 USD
Business Purpose	Driving to & from Dulles airport.
Description	
Rate	Select
Rate	0.625
Miles	0.00 Calculate Mileage

Enter the starting location, and the destination, and then click "Return to start". You can enter up to 10 entries on one mileage line if there are multiple business-related stops. Click "Save Trip" and "Add to report"

## Entering Mileage

- Click on the "Ground Transportation" tile
- Mileage
- The start address should be their JMU work address unless their home is closer to the destination
- Enter the address of where they went
- Click "return to start"
- Use the "Add Destination" Button to add up to 10 entries on one line.

1031 South Main Street, Harrisonburg, VA, USA Dulles International Arport (IAD), Saarinen Circle, Dulles, VA, USA 1031 South Main Street, Harrisonburg, VA, USA	Return to Sta	0			
Dulles International Airport (IAD), Skannen Circle, Dulles, VA, USA 1031 South Main Street, Harrisonburg, VA, USA	Return to Sta	•			
1031 South Main Street, Harrisonburg, VA, USA	Return to Sta	•			
senation	Return to Sta				
242.01 Miles					
Satellite Windhester Benyvele Benyvele Stephenis City B Moderborn Instatution	T Leesburg Ashturn B ng	Gath			
Tron Rev. Athas Workstock	Chuntily Gainswife Manassas renton	fax. Text			
b b b	Satellite Wichesser Browne Stophen CV Stophen CV	Satellite Workson Workstox Workstox Workstox Workstox Workstox Workstox Workstox Workstox Workstox Wathergin	Satellite Workston Workston Workston Workston Workston Washington Washi	Satellite Workster Works	Satellite Workson Stephen Cty Stephen Cty

## **Deduction in Mileage**

In the mileage tile, we cannot use account code 9900 if it is necessary to manipulate the reimbursement amount. Instead, where it says "Deduction" click on "None" and a drop-down will appear. Here you can decide to deduct a specific amount or a distance from the mileage report. However, this cannot be used to circumvent the IRS rate of 280 miles per day. If the report exceeds 280 miles per day the fleet rate must be selected.

Rate	IRS Rate <
Rate	0.625
vliles	2.38 Calculate Mileage 1
Deduction	None
Allocation	Distance Amount

**Taxi:** The state will only pay for transportation to/from official business – examples of this include the airport, conference, and hotel. Put in the date of purchase, the amount spent (this should include the fare plus tip), and then the tip amount.

We can tip 20% of the total (this includes taxes & fees because there are not any per diems associated with a taxi). Your description should include details of where they went and why.

axi / Shuttle	e
Date	05/04/2023
Spent	15.76 USD
Spent amount should include far	e plus tip
Tip Amount	2.60
Tip Percentage	20
Description	Took a taxi from the airport to the conference hotel.
Receipt Attached	

Helpful Hints: if the person tips over 20%, you must reduce the tip, and the amount spent by the same amount.

## Parking, Car Rental Fuel, State Vehicle Fuel, Public Transit (bus, metro) and tolls:

Enter the date, the amount spent, and a description, and include the receipt.

## **Entering a Hotel Expense**

### JMU can only reimburse the traveler whose name appears on the hotel bill

The travelers must pay for their hotel bill to be reimbursed. Travelers may not claim the reimbursement if anyone other than themselves pays for the hotel. This includes partners, parents, colleagues, and so forth.

To be considered for reimbursement the hotel bill must be fully itemized and show proof of payment.

Hotel Header: When you click on "hotel" you will be prompted to create the header

- Date = of checkout
- Spent = The total amount spent (even if we are not able to reimburse everything).
- Business Purpose
- Receipt attached.
- Allocation

## Itemize

After you create your header, you need to itemize the entire bill.

	Cancel Save Itemize
Hotel	
Date	05/15/2023
Spent	500.00 USD
Business Purpose	Lodging during conference.
Description Optional	
Receipt Attached	

The Hotel Tiles will populate for itemizing.

Add Item	nization				Done
Ho	otel			TOTAL AN	10UNT REMAINING
HOTEL LODGING /	MOTEL ROOM TAX /	P HOTEL PARKING	HOTELENTERNET /	HOTEL BUSINESS	HOTEL MEETING
	HOTEL - OTHER		REFISENCES ABOLE		

### **Hotel Lodging/Per Diem**

The hotel lodging/ Per Diem tile is used to itemize the room rates. If the room rates are the same for one or more consecutive nights in a row you may combine them. If they are different, you must itemize them separately.

The "Date should be the date of checkout. "Spent" is the total amount spent on the room(s). Click on "Calculate"



• Enter the check-in date, the check-out date, the location (this should be on the hotel's address), and number of rooms.

- "Rooms" also refers to "occupants". If two people travel together on JMU business and share a room, they would each be entitled to a per diem, and you should enter "2" next to rooms.
- Click "Save"

Calculate Allowable Tota	I ×
Start Date	05/01/2023
End Date	05/03/2023
Location	San Diego-San Diego County, California (CA), United Sta
Rooms	1
Nights	2
Average Daily Room Rate	181.00 USD
	Cancel Save
Calculate Allowable Tota	i ×
Rooms	
Nights	2
Average Daily Room Rate	181.00 USD
Base Total	362.00 USD
Allowable Total	724.00 USD
	Cancel Save

**Note:** The "Calculate Allowable Total" screen gives information about what the state will reimburse; these are for the room rates only (not including taxes). Entering the correct location is imperative for the system to calculate the correct per diem which is what the State will pay for lodging in a specific area.

In the example above, the location is San Diego, May 2023. Per diems are based on the date and location, it is important to be precise with these details. This is for a two-night stay as indicated on the screenshot. The "Average Daily Room

Rate" is the *base per diem*; the state allows us to reimburse up to 200% of this amount with justification The "base total" is simply the base per diem multiplied by the number of nights (\$181.00\*2 = \$362.00). The "Allowable Total" is 200% of the base total and is the *maximum* the state will reimburse. Anything over this amount cannot be reimbursed with state funds.

Hotel Room Taxes/Fees: Taxes and fees can be combined, even if the room rates are itemized separately.

% Hotel Room	n Tax / Fees
Date	05/15/2023
Spent	50.00 USD
Description Optional	
Receipt Attached	

#### **Hotel Parking**

Hotel parking should go into the appropriate tile. The state can reimburse self-parking fees. If self-parking is not offered at a hotel, then valet parking can be reimbursed. A screenshot from the hotel's website should be uploaded for auditing purposes.

P Hotel Parkin	g
Date	05/15/2023
Spent	50.00 🖬 USD
Description	Self-Parking for two nights.
Receipt Attached	$\checkmark$

#### **Hotel Personal Non-Reimbursable**

The state will not reimburse personal expenses on a hotel bill. These must be itemized in the personal nonreimbursable" tile. These expenses include but are not limited to, fees for early check-in or late check-out, room service, internet fees, laundry services, and movies/entertainment.

	Personal	Non-Reimbursat	ble
--	----------	----------------	-----

Date	05/15/2023
Spent	100.00 🖬 USD
Description	Room service and movie rental.
Personal Charge	
Allocation	
9900 - Non-Reimbursable	

## NOTE: Split Allocation: Hotel Lodging Per Diem & Split Taxes

If a hotel's lodging per diem exceeds the allowable total, or if there is no justification for going over the base per diem, then the reimbursement amount must be reduced to the allowable total and the taxes for those nights must be prorated by the same percentage.

To do this, enter the "Spent" amount as usual, scroll down to "Allocation" and click "Add Allocation" and enter 9900 for personal, non-reimbursable. In the example below, the "Allowable" total is \$428.00, and the amount spent is \$500. In the allocations, put \$428.00 into the org code that is paying for the expense, and the remaining in 9900. Write down the percentage splits to apply to the tax line that corresponds with the lodging that went over the allowable total.

Spent		500.00	USD			
Allowable Total		428.00	USD	Calculate		
Receipt Attached	$\checkmark$					
Allocation						
		Sp	olit Equal	ly C	lear Splits	
× 100432 - ACCOUNTS PA	YABLE			85.6 %	428.00	•
× 9900 - Non-Reimbursable	9			14.4 %	72.00	•
				100 %	500.00	

Save this line item and click "Itemize" then "Taxes and Fees". Enter the taxes for the specific night, scroll down, click "add allocation" and add the 9900 allocations; instead of entering a dollar amount, insert the percentage that the org code can pay, and the percentage that is non-reimbursable from the previous screen.

Spent	250.00 🖬 USD
Description Optional	Prorating the hotel taxes with the room rate. The percentage splits must match the room's percentage split.
Receipt Attached	
Allocation	
	Split Equally Clear Splits
× 100432 - ACCOUNTS PAYA	BLE 100432 - ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 85.60 % 214.00
× 9900 - Non-Reimbursable	14.40 %     36.00     ◀       100 %     250.00

## **Entering Conference/Registration and Membership Fees.**

Conference and Membership fees must be included on the expense report and cannot be reimbursed until after the conference has concluded. Please note that the "date" will always be the date of purchase.



	Cancel Save
Conference	e / Registration Fees
Date	04/26/2023
Spent	86.00 🔛 USD
Description	Conference fees to attend the National Communication Association.
Receipt Attached	
University Paid	

## **International Travel**

## All international travel *must* have a Pre-Approval attached to it.

#### **Currency Converter**

Creating an international expense report involves the same steps as a domestic expense report. However, you must enter receipts into the system in the currency the purchase was in.

Click on the "USD" next to the amount and a drop-down will appear with all the currencies. Select the appropriate one and Chrome River will convert the currency into USD. The system is live and will convert based on real-time currency rates from the date of purchase.

Ð			Cancel Save
0	Conference	e / Registration Fees	Î
-	Date		
	Spent	0.00 🖬 USD	
	SRD - Suriname Dollars SSP - South Sudanese pour STN - São Tomé and Prínc SVC - El Salvador Colones SYP - Syria Pounds SZL - Swaziland Emalange THB - Thailand Baht Re TJS - Tajikistan Somoni TMM - Turkmenistan Manat TMT - Turkmenistan Manat TMT - Turkmenistan Manat TMD - Tunisia Dinars TOP - Tonga Pa'anga GTRY - Turkey New Lira TTD - Trinidad and Tobago TVD - Tuvalu Dollars ITWD - Taiwan New Dollars TZS - Tanzania Shillings UPUAH - Ukraine Hryvnia UGX - Uganda Shillings Int USD - US Dollars James Madise	und pipe Dobra eni ats ts Dollars on University	100 % 0.00
	Allocation		
	Search for Allocation		
Date		04/26/2023	
Spent		86.00 <b>EUR</b>	>
FX Rat	e	1.1732705325	100.90 USD
Descrip	otion	Conference fees to attend the I	National Communication

**Telecom:** The telecom tile is primarily used for long-distance telephone fees which might occur while a JMU employee is on official business abroad and needs to conduct business/communicate with JMU.



**Miscellaneous Travel Related:** Any other reimbursable expenses that occur while the person is on travel status will be found in this tile.



## **Reimbursing an External Person**

- If an external person travels on behalf of the University, they are entitled to payment for their expenses. Most commonly, this is candidates for a faculty position, and we bring them to campus for an interview.
- Occasionally, students will also travel on behalf of the university (to conferences)
- The same travel reimbursement rules apply to non-employees. Itemized receipts are needed for reimbursement.

## To enter a non-employee into the system they must fill out the "non-employee vendor enrollment form" and email it to <u>chromerivervendors@jmu.edu</u>

- Students should fill out the form using their SA (Jaccard number), outside parties must use their SSN.
- You will get a confirmation email when they are in the system.
- Create your report as usual, but "Type of Traveler" will either be "Outside Party" or "Student" (pick accordingly)
- Click on the "non-employee" drop-down and select the traveler's name from the list.

Report Type	Domestic	•
Report Purpose	Recruitment	•
Type of Traveler	Outside Party	•
Non Employee	Select	•
Travel Start	05/03/2023	
Travel End	05/04/2023	

## Before submitting an Expense Report for an external person, they must sign the Cover Page and upload it as you would a receipt.

• Click on "PDF"

o "Cover Page"

Open Delete PDF -	Submit
Training	
Report Owner	Andrea Burkholder Administrative Assistant
Expense Report ID	QA0058999097

## Ask them to review the charges on the first page and sign the second page.

Total	- A	RT, DESIGN & ART HISTORY	336.00
This document may o intended recipient, or notify the sender imm or distribution of the	contain confidential and/or privileged in t the person responsible for delivering t nediately and destroy this material. Any material in this communication is strict	formation. If you are not the o the person addressed, please / unauthorized copying, disclosure ly forbidden.	
Chrome River   ww	ww.chromeriver.com		Page 1 of 2
Expense Report		Report ID: Q	A00-5899-9097
Expense Report Report Name Tr Expense Owner Ar	aining ndrea Burkholder	Report ID: Q	A00-5899-9097
Expense Report Report Name Expense Owner Created By Date To Be Paid In	aining hdrea Burkholder ACCAAJ / 100067870 hdrea Burkholder ay 16, 2023 SD	Report ID: Q	A00-5899-9097
Expense Report Report Name Tr Expense Owner Created By Ar Date Mi To Be Paid In US Please place	aining hdrea Burkholder ACCAAJ / 100067870 hdrea Burkholder ay 16, 2023 SD e this cover sheet in front of hardco ail: expense-qa@chromefile.com	Report ID: Q	A00-5899-9097
Expense Report Report Name Trr Expense Owner Ar Expense Owner VA Created By Ar Date Ar To Be Paid In US Please place Em	raining ndrea Burkholder ACCAAJ / 100067870 ndrea Burkholder ay 16, 2023 5D e this cover sheet in front of hardco ail: expense-qa@chromefile.com	Report ID: Q	A00-5899-9097

## Submitting an Expense Report & Attaching a Pre-approval

- When you've completed your report click "submit" at the bottom of the report.
- Submit Confirmation will pop up in the upper right-hand corner.
- If the report requires a pre-approval, click on "pre-approval" and select the correlating pre-approval that was created prior to travel. Then click "submit."

## **Business Meals**

- Meals while on official business must involve a substantive and bona fide business discussion with a non-University employee.
- A University employee should pay for the entire business meal and submit the receipt for reimbursement.
- An original, itemized receipt is required for reimbursement of all business meals.
- Tips for official business meals are limited to 20% of the food/drink before taxes.
- An approving authority may authorize a meal reimbursement of up to 50% over the applicable per diem rates with sufficient justification.

• Alcohol is not reimbursable.

### To get started, create a header for the report.

- 1. The date the meal took place
- 2. The Report type
- 3. The Report Purpose
- 4. Type of Traveler
- 5. Travel Start & End Date
- 6. Number of Business Days
- 7. Save

## Click on the "Meals and Entertainment" tile & "Business Meal.



#### **Create your Business Meal Header**

\*\*\*Enter the date of the meal, and click on "Calculate"

e	eals		
Date	05/04/2023		
After pressing the Calculate Button, please adjust the spent amount to be the total of your Food, Tip and Tax Amounts			
Spent	0.00	USD	
Tax Amount	0		
Tip Amount	0.00		
Tip Percentage	0		
Allowable Food Total	0.00	USD Calculate	
Overage Total	0.00	USD	
Business Purpose			

#### **Business Meal Calculate:**

- Location based on the receipt where the meal took place
- Meal Type Breakfast, Lunch, or Dinner.
- Attendees Enter the number of people who attended the business meal.
- Based on this information the system will calculate the following:
  - o "Per Attendee" allowance
  - "Base Total (which is the per diem for the entire meal)
  - "Allowable Food Total" which is 50% over the per diem that can be given with proper justification.

Calculate Allowable Tota	×
Location	Harrisonburg-Harrisonburg (city), Virginia (VA), United St
Meal Type	<ul> <li>Breakfast</li> <li>Lunch</li> <li>Dinner</li> </ul>
Attendees	2
	Per Attendee15.00 USDBase Total30.00 USDAllowable Food Total45.00 USD
	Cancel Save

Calculate Allowable Total		×
Calculate Overages		
		SPENT AMOUNT
Food		30.00
Food		
Spent 30.00 USD of 45.00 USD Over 0.00 USD		
	Total Spent	30.00 USD
	Total Overages	0.00 USD
		Cancel Save

- Enter the "Food" total this is the *subtotal* of the food purchased (without tax)
  - Click Save

This will take you back to the "Business Meal Header" screen.

- Enter the tax amount
- Enter the tip tip cannot exceed 20% of the subtotal
- Please note the subtotal from the "calculate" is automatically put into the "spent" field. This WILL make the tip percentage higher than it is.

D	ate
	~~~

05/04/2023

After pressing the	Calculate Button	n, please	adjust the	spent	amount	to be	the	total	of
Food, Tip and Tax	Amounts								

Spent	30.00	USD	
Tax Amount	3.69		
Tip Amount	6.00		
Tip Percentage	30		
Allowable Food Total	45.00	USD	Calculate
Overage Total	0.00	USD	

At this point, adjust the "Spent" to be the total of the food, tip, and tax amounts. The tip percentage will be adjusted accordingly to reflect the true percentage.

e	als
Date	05/04/2023
After pressing the Calculate Butto Food, Tip and Tax Amounts	on, please adjust the spent amount to be the total of your
Spent	39.69 🔛 USD
Tax Amount	3.69
Tip Amount	6.00
Tip Percentage	20
Allowable Food Total	45.00 USD Calculate

#### **Adding External Guest**

A business meal must have at least one external guest.

- Scroll down to where it says "Guests"
- Select "External"

- Add New External Guest
- **Please note** this is also how you would add an external guest to any expense that required one (hotel, non-travel catering, etc.)

Guests (1) (i)	
External -	Add Guests
Upload CSV Internal × And Add Jan	<ul> <li>Andrea Smith JMU Candiate</li> <li>MU candidate</li> <li>Claire Fulk Recruit</li> </ul>
References	Cisco
Food and Beverage	jmu jmu
Attachments (0)	Doug Alderfer Asst Superintenende RCPS
	Add New External Guests?
Guests (1) (i)	
EXTERNAL	
First Name	Duke
Last Name	Dog
Title	JMU Candidate
Company Name	JMU
	Cancel

## **Chrome River Reminders:**

- Meals per diem are determined from where lodging occurred, and where the person laid their head at night. If a person travels to multiple locations during travel status, the per diem must change as well.
- > To enter a report on behalf of another user, the primary user must first make you a delegate for their account
- > All expenses must have an itemized receipt showing proof of payment.
- Receipts should be attached to the line items they correlate with (See pg. 15)
- All expenses must be in the user's name for reimbursement. A spouse/parent, etc. cannot pay for a hotel, or airfare on behalf of someone traveling for JMU and it be reimbursed to a JMU employee.

- Employees cannot pay for other employee expenses and seek reimbursement (Hotel, Airfare, Conference fees)
- All expenses should include the full amount, if something is not reimbursable allocate the non-reimbursable portion to 9900, except for taxis and business meals.
- > Hotel services or purchases that aren't reimbursable should be itemized in the Personal Non-Reimbursable tile.
- > The state cannot reimburse alcohol.
- The state will not reimburse personal expenses including transportation costs to or from personal meals, sightseeing, etc.
- Public transportation policy states that travelers must select economy vehicles when securing rental cars, and select coach/economy seating on trains, and planes. Luxury cars, limousines, XL taxis, and optional add-ons such as "Priority Pickup" are not reimbursable with state funds.
- Parking is included in the Public Transportation policy, and travelers must park in the lowest economy lot at airports, train and bus stations.
- > Travelers must opt for self-parking when available at hotels.
- Mileage: The area within a 25-mile radius is the employee-designated base point, and mileage is not reimbursable if traveling within 25 miles of their base point.

## **Chrome River Helpful Links**

- Chrome River Training Materials: <u>https://www.jmu.edu/financeoffice/accounting-operations-disbursements/accounts-payable/chrome-river-training.shtml</u>
- Assigning a delegate <a href="https://www.jmu.edu/financeoffice/files/ap-files/how-to-become-a-delegate.pdf">https://www.jmu.edu/financeoffice/files/ap-files/how-to-become-a-delegate.pdf</a>
- Entering a Business Meal <u>https://www.jmu.edu/financeoffice/\_files/ap-files/how\_to\_enter\_business\_meals.pdf</u>
- Entering a Hotel Expense <u>https://www.jmu.edu/financeoffice/\_files/ap-files/How\_To\_Enter\_Hotel\_Expenses.pdf</u>

## **Contact Information**

Accounts Payable: acctspayable@jmu.edu (Departmental mailbox monitored during business hours)

## **Chrome River**

Tina Wells	Manager 568-6231
Andrea Burkholder	Academic Affairs 568-3713
Pam Cahill	Student Affairs & Local Funds. 568-3714
Heather Baker	Athletics, School of Music, & College of Education 568-236